
Agenda 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, September 11, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 

Yuba City, CA  95993 
 

Public Hearings 

o Sufficiency of Textbooks and/or Instructional Materials 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools 
Office Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday – excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County Superintendent of 
Schools’ website at www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
 
   Jim Richmond, President 
   Ron Turner, Vice President 
   Karm Bains, Member 
   Victoria Lachance, Member 
   June McJunkin, Member 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the Board 
regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California Government 
Code, Section 54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be taken on any item 
not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 

 
5.0  Approve the following Minutes of the Sutter County Board of 
  Education [Action Item] 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 4  
September 11, 2019 
 

 
 5.1  The minutes of the June 26, 2019, regular meeting of the 
 Sutter County Board of Education are presented for approval. 
 

   5.2  The minutes of the August 14, 2019, regular meeting of  
   the Sutter County Board of Education are presented for approval. 

 
6.0 Anti-Vaping Campaign Presentation 
 Erica Melchor 
  
 A student driven Anti-Vaping Campaign, implemented at Albert 
 Powell High  School, will be shared with the Board – Erica Melchor 
  

  7.0 Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Textbooks and/or Instructional   
   Materials – Brian Gault  
 
   Education Code Section 60119 requires a public hearing to  

  encourage participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members 
  of the community and bargaining unit leaders who are interested 
  in addressing the Board regarding sufficiency of textbooks or 
  instructional materials for county-operated programs.  
  

   8.0  Adopt Resolution No. 19-20-I – Sufficiency of Instructional 
 Materials – Brian Gault - [Action Item] 

 
    Resolution No. 19-20-I states the sufficiency of textbooks and/or 

 instructional materials for students in county-operated programs 
 are being presented for adoption.  

 
  9.0      Appointment of Supervisors of Attendance  

       Brian Gault – [Action Item] 
 

   In any district or districts with an average daily attendance of 1,000  
   or more school children, according to the annual school report of  
   the last preceding school year, no district supervisor of attendance  
   shall be appointed, unless he has been lawfully certificated for the  
   work by the county board of education. 
 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 4  
September 11, 2019 
 
   Recommend that Virginia Burns be appointed Supervisor of Attendance  
   for Sutter County Superintendent of Schools as she was trained in all  
   duties of Supervisor of Attendance on August 29 and 30, 2019.  
   Recommend that Jennifer Cates and Brian Brown be certified as District  
   Supervisors of Attendance for Yuba City Unified School District as they  
   were trained in all the duties of supervisors of attendance at the California 
   Department of Education on August 16, 2019. 
 
  10.0 Business Services Report 
 
   10.1 Monthly Financial Report – August 2019 – Aaron Heinz 
   10.2 Investment Report – July 2019 - Ron Sherrod 
   10.3 Surplus Report – Ron Sherrod 
   10.4 Donations – Ron Sherrod 
 
  11.0 Adopt Resolution 19-20-II Declaration of Surplus and Disposition of 
   Real Property - Ron Sherrod [Action Item] 
 
   Adopt Resolution to declare certain real property as surplus and to  
   proceed with the disposition and sale of properties located at: 
 

• 950 Tharp Road, #300 
Yuba City, CA  95993 
APN: 58-050-072 
 

• 1699 Sierra Avenue 
Yuba City, CA  95993 
APN: 58-050-034 
 

• 996 Klamath Lane 
Yuba City, CA  95993 
APN: 58-050-083 

     
  12.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board  

 
  13.0 Adjournment 
 
 
 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 4 of 4  
September 11, 2019 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours 
prior to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   5.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Approve Minutes: June 26, 2019 Regular Board Meeting and    

August 14, 2019 Regular Board Meeting  
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          September 11, 2019       
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
  Maggie Nicoletti    
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Tom Reusser ____________ 
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Tom Reusser   
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Minutes of the June 26, 2019, and August 14, 2019, (Regular Meetings) are 
presented for approval. 
 
 
 



Unapproved     
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 
June 26, 2019 

 
1.0  Call to Order 

A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education was called to 
order by President Richmond at 5:30 p.m., June 26, 2019, at the Sutter 
County Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, 
California. 

  
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Richmond. 
  
3.0 Roll call of Members 
  Jim Richmond, President – Present 
 Ron Turner, Vice President – Present 
 Karm Bains, Member – Absent 
 Victoria Lachance, Member – Present  
 June McJunkin, Member – Absent 
 
 Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary – Present 
   

Staff Members Present: Aaron Heinz, Paramjeet Kaur, Kathy Tamez, and 
Maggie Nicoletti 

   
4.0 Items of Public Interest to come to the attention of the Board 
 None 
 
5.0 Recognition of Sutter County Superintendent of School Retirees 
 The Board recognized the following retirees: A reception was held prior to 

the Sutter County Board of Education Meeting; Roy Perez was the only 
retiree in attendance. 

 
   Robin Beals 
   Educational Interpreter, Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
   13 Years of Service 
 
   Wendy Bedard 
   Director, Human Resources 
   30 Years of Service 
 
   Michael Bowes 
   Para Educator Attendant, Special Education 
   38 Years of Service 
   Linda Olson 
 
   Dr. Karen Chiechi 
   Director, Educator Support 
   7 Years of Service 
 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 
June 26, 2019 
 

   Cindy Fuess 
   Teacher, Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
   19 Years of Service 
 
   Tami Henneberry 
   Senior Coordinator, Special Education 
   33 Years of Service 
 
   Barbara Hickman 
   Assistant Superintendent, Special Education 
   13 Years of Service 
 
   Monty Martin 
   Senior Coordinator, Special Education 
   5 Years of Service 
 
   Charlie Osborne 
   Director, Information Systems 
   10 years of Service 
 
   Roy Perez 
   Custodian 
   12 Years of Service 
 
   Stephanie Graham 
   Para Educator with Signing Skills 
   34 Years of Service 
 
6.0 Adoption of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ 2019-2020 Local 

Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum   
 A motion was made to adopt the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ 

2019-2020 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal 
Addendum 

 
Motion: Ron Turner    Seconded: Victoria Lachance 

 Action:   Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   3 (Turner, Lachance and Richmond)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   2 (McJunkin and Bains)  Abstain: 0  
 
   
7.0 Adoption of the 2019-2020 Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ 

Budget 
 A motion was made to adopt the 2019-2020 Sutter County Superintendent 

of Schools’ Budget. 
 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 
June 26, 2019 
 

Motion: Victoria Lachance    Seconded: Ron Turner 
 Action:   Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   3 (Turner, Lachance and Richmond)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   2 (McJunkin and Bains)   Abstain: 0  
     
9.0  Items from the Superintendent/Board  
   Superintendent Reusser stated that he recently attended the CCSESA 

Quarterly Meeting.   
   President Richmond congratulated the retirees and thanked them for their 

service. 
          
10.0  Adjournment   
  A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 5:41 p.m. 
 

Motion: Victoria Lachance   Seconded: Ron Turner 
 Action:   Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   3 (Turner, Lachance and Richmond)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   2 (McJunkin and Bains)  Abstain: 0  
   
 



  Unapproved     
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 
August 14, 2019 

 
1.0  Call to Order 

A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education was called to order by 
President Richmond at 5:30 p.m., August 14, 2019, at the Sutter County Superintendent of 
Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, California. 

  
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Richmond 
  
3.0 Roll call of Members 
  Jim Richmond, President – Present 
 Ron Turner, Vice President – Present 
 Karm Bains, Member – Present 
 Victoria Lachance, Member – Absent 
 June McJunkin, Member – Present 
 
 Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary – Present 
 Staff Members Present: Ron Sherrod, Aaron Heinz, Kathy Tamez, Jami Paul, Brian Gault, 
 Eric Pomeroy, Shannon Cueva, Daria Ali, and Maggie Nicoletti 
   
4.0 Items of Public Interest to come to the attention of the Board 
 None 
 
5.0 Approve the following Minutes of the Sutter County Board of Education 
 A motion was made to approve the minutes of the following Regular Meetings and 

Special Meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education. 
 

 5.1  The minutes of the June 19, 2019 regular meeting of the Sutter County Board  of 
 Education are presented for approval. 
  

Motion:   Ron Turner   Seconded: Karm Bains 
 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes:  4 (McJunkin, Turner, Bains and Richmond)  
 Noes: 0  
 Absent:  1 (Lachance)        Abstain: 0 
 
 5.2  The minutes of the June 26, 2019 regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of 
 Education are presented for approval. 
 
 No quorum for this action item.  Karm Bains and June McJunkin were not in 
 attendance at the June 26, 2019 Board Meeting and Victoria Lachance was not in 
 attendance at today’s Board Meeting – August 14, 2019.   This item will be brought 
 back to the September 11, 2019 Regular Board Meeting.  



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 
August 14, 2019 
 

 5.3  The minutes of the July 10, 2019 regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of 
 Education are presented for approval. 
 

Motion:   June McJunkin  Seconded: Karm Bains 
 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes:  3 (McJunkin, Richmond and Bains)    
 Noes: 0  
 Absent:  1 (Lachance)               Abstain: 1 (Turner) 
 
 5.4  The minutes of the July 10, 2019 special meeting of the  Sutter County Board of 
 Education are presented for approval. 

 
Motion:   June McJunkin  Seconded: Karm Bains 

 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes:  3 (McJunkin, Richmond and Bains)    
 Noes: 0  
 Absent:  1 (Lachance)               Abstain: 1 (Turner)   
 
6.0 Shady Creek Outdoor School and Shady Creek Outdoor Education Foundation 
 Presentation    
      Shannon Cueva, Director of Shady Creek Outdoor School, gave a PowerPoint Presentation 
 on Shady Creek Outdoor School which outlined the challenges, moving forward, facility 
 improvements and accomplishments during the 2018-2019 school year. 
 Daria Ali, Executive Director of Shady Creek Outdoor Educational Foundation, shared a 
 Resolution presented to the Shady Creek Outdoor Education Program by Senator Jim 
 Nielsen and Assembly Member James Gallagher in October 2018.  Daria left the 
 Resolution with Superintendent Reusser so that it could be displayed at the county office.  
 Daria distributed a handout to Board Members which outlined the Raffle Benefit Program, 
 Scholarships and School Grants, FIT QUEST (Nutrition, Physical Activity, Mental 
 Wellness) and Bird Care.   September 7th is Friends & Family Day and all were invited.  
 October 7th – all students from the five schools that were hit hard with the norovirus will 
 be bussed to Franklin School for a mini Hawk Flight Day.  Daria invited all to the Lip
 Sync Battle that is being held March 13, 2020.  The Evening in the Forest will be hosted 
 in the Fall of 2020, celebrating the Foundation’s 30th year.  Dari also reported that a 
 shade structure is being constructed at Shady Creek at this time.   
 Tom thanked Shannon and Daria for their presentations and stated that Shannon did a 
 great job dealing with the illnesses that hit Shady Creek during the 2018-2019 school year. 
 
7.0 Approval of Annual Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators (2019-2020)  
 Kathy Tamez stated the Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators must be 

approved and on file with the Commission on Teacher Credentialing before emergency 
permits can be issued to the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office.  

 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 
August 14, 2019 
 

 A motion was made to approve the Annual Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified 
Educators for 2019-2020. 
 
Motion:   Karm Bains   Seconded: June McJunkin 

 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes:  4 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond and Bains)  
 Noes: 0  
 Absent:    1 (Lachance)                Abstain: 0 
  
8.0 Quarterly Report on Williams/Uniforms Complaints (April 1, 2019 – June 30, 2019) 

Brian Gault shared the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for April 1, 
2019 to June 30, 2019, 4th quarter of school year 2018-2019, pursuant to Education Code 
§35186.  No reports were received within Sutter County during the last quarter.  
    

9.0 Business Services Report 
 9.1 Aaron reviewed the July 2019 monthly Financial Report with the Board for the period 

of July 1 – July 15, 2019.    
 9.2  Ron reviewed the June 2019 Investment Statement with the Board.  He stated that the 

interest rate is 2.08 %. There are expectations that a Recession is going to hit. 
 9.3  Ron reported that Bethany Thomas and Kelly Casey each donated $250.00 to be used 

for Shady Creek Outdoor School summer camp tuition scholarships. 
 
10.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board   
 Tom thanked the Board Members that were able to attend the County-wide In-Service.  
 Tom stated that Bill Embleton has been working very hard to fill open positions within the 
 Special Education Department. 
 The food trailers are here; however, they are not completely ready.  They need licensing 
 and decals and they will be ready for participation in the Nicolaus Labor Day Parade.  
 June met with Tom before the Board Meeting today to discuss publishing articles with 
 CCBE and CSBA  allowing us the opportunity to showcase what is happening at SCSOS. 
  Karm stated the committee met regarding the sale of SCSOS properties and the 
 prospective buyer showed interested in all three properties.  A report will be presented to 
 the Board at a later date. 
     
11.0  Adjournment   
  A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:16 p.m. 
 
  Motion:   June McJunkin   Seconded: Karm Bains 
 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes:  4 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond and Bains)     
 Noes: 0  
    Absent:    1 (Lachance)                Abstain: 0      
 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 
August 14, 2019 
 

        



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  6.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Anti-Vaping Campaign Presentation 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:           September 11, 2019        
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
   X  Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Erica Melchor  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Erica Melchor  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Erica Melchor  
 
      
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
  
 
Anti-Vaping Campaign: 
 
A student driven campaign program implemented at Albert Powell High School. A  
group of 10 students elected to participate in a 10-week multi-media program. The 
students focus for the campaign is targeting their peers, with the goal of reducing teen 
vaping.  
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  7.0  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Textbooks or Instructional 

Materials or Both   
                                         
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  September 11, 2019    
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
     Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
     Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Angela Gresham  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Brian Gault   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
Brian Gault  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
  
Education Code Section 60119 requires the governing board to hold a public hearing to 
encourage participation by parents, teachers, and members of the community interested 
in the affairs for the County Office of Education, and bargaining unit leaders, to make a 
determination as to whether each pupil has sufficient textbooks or instructional 
materials or both, in each subject that are consistent with the content and cycles of the 
curriculum framework adopted by the State Board of Education: 
 
• Mathematics 
• Science 
• History-Social Science 
• English/Language Arts, including English Language Development 
 
This public hearing must be held before the eight week of school (between the first day 
that students attend school and the eight week from that day). 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

The Sutter County Board of Education hereby gives notice that a Public 
Hearing will be held as follows: 
 
 
TOPIC OF HEARING: 
 
Education Code Section 60119 requires the governing board to hold a public 
hearing to encourage participation by parents, teachers, and members of the 
community interested in the affairs of the County Office of Education, and 
bargaining unit leaders, and shall make a determination through a resolution, 
as to whether each pupil has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or 
both, in each subject that are consistent with the content and cycles of the 
curriculum framework adopted by the State Board of Education: 
 
 (i) Mathematics 
 (ii) Science 
 (iii) History – Social Science 
 (iv) English/Language Arts, including  
  English Language Development 
 
HEARING DATE:   September 11, 2019 
 
 TIME: 5:30 p.m. 
 
 LOCATION: Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
  970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  
 

For additional information, contact: 
Tom Reusser, Sutter County Superintendent of Schools 

970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, California 
(530) 822-2900 

 
Posted:  08/29/19 

 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   8.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution for Sufficiency of Instructional Materials in 
      Science, History/Social Science, Mathematics, and      
                                      English/Language Arts                                             
 
                                      
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  September 11, 2019     
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Angie Gresham  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
Brian Gault  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
  
After the public hearing on the sufficiency of textbooks and/or instructional 
materials, the board will be asked to adopt a resolution to make a determination as 
to whether each pupil has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in 
each subject that are consistent with the content and cycles of the curriculum 
framework adopted by the State Board of Education. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 19-20-I  

 
 

SUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
2019-20 

 
Whereas, the governing board of Sutter County Superintendent of Schools, in order to 
comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing 
on September 11, 2019, at 5:30 p.m., which is on or before the eighth week of school 
(between the first day that students attend school and the end of the eighth week from 
that day) and which did not take place during or immediately following school hours, 
and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing 
posted in at least three public places within the county that stated the time, place, and 
purpose of the hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, 
teachers, members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, 
and; 
 

FOR A FINDING OF SUFFICIENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SCIENCE, 
HISTORY-SOCIAL SCIENCE, MATH AND READING FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at the 
public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were 
provided to all students, including English learners, in the district/county office of 
education, and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" means that 
each student, including each English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook and/or 
instructional materials to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in 
a digital format but shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a 
textbook or instructional materials copied to address a shortage, and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" also means 
that all students who are enrolled in the same course within the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools, have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials 
from the same adoption cycle, and; 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each 
student, including English learners that are aligned to the academic content standards 
and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks in the following 
subjects: 
 

 



Special Education 
 
Science:  K–Grade 5 uses Pearson Scott Foresman California.   
 
Grade K-8 uses Unique Learning System Online Curriculum. Grade 6 uses Holt, 
Rinehart and Winston, California Earth Science.  Grade 7 uses Holt, Rinehart 
and Winston California Life Science.  Grade 8 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston 
California Physical Science. 

 
 Science:  Grades 9 – 12 uses McDougal Littell, Biology 2008. 
 

Science:  Grades 9 – 12 uses Pearson-Prentice Hall, Chemistry 2007-CA 
Edition. 
 
Science:  Grades 9 – 12 uses Earth Science, Holt, Reinhart & Winston. 
 
Science:  Grades 9 – 12 uses Physical Science with Earth Science, Glencoe-
McGraw Hill. 
 
Science:  Grades 9 – 12 uses Biology, Sixth Edition, Benjamin Cummings, 
Pearson Education, Inc. 
 
Science: Grades 9-12 uses Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum  
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 12 uses Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 2003, 
Economics and Prentice Hall, 2006, American Government. 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 11 uses McDougal Littell, 2003, The Americans.  

 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 10 uses McDougal Littell, 2006, Modern World History. 

  
History/Social Studies: Grade 7-12 uses Unique Learning Systems, Online Curriculum 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 8 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2005, 
History Alive!, The United States Through Industrialism.  

 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 7 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2005, History 
Alive!, The Medieval World and Beyond. 

 
 History/Social Studies: Grade K-6 uses Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum 
 

History/Social Studies:  Grade 6 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2004. 
History Alive!, The Ancient World.  

 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 5 uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Our Nation.  

 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 4 uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Our California.  
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 3 uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Our Communities. 



 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 2 uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Then and Now. 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 1 uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Time and Place. 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade K uses Scott Foresman, 2006, Learn and Work. 

  
Mathematics curriculum for Grade K-6 Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum 
 
Mathematics curriculum for K-5 enVision Math, Scott Foresman-Addison Wesley, 2009. 

 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 6 Course 1: Numbers to Algebra, Holt, Rinehart, and 
Winston, 2008. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 6-8 Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum 

 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 7 Course 2: Pre- Algebra I, Holt, Rinehart, and 
Winston, 2008. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 8 Course 1: Algebra 1, Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 
2008. 
 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 California Pre-Algebra, Pearson-Prentice 
Hall. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 Algebra 1 – Classics, Smith Charles, 
Pearson-Prentice Hall. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 California Geometry, Pearson-Prentice Hall. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 Beginning Algebra with Applications, 
Houghton Mifflin.  
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 Algebra 1, McDougal Littell. 
 
Mathematics curriculum for Grades 9 – 12 Geometry: Concepts and Skills, McDougal 
Littell. 

 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 9-12 Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum 
 
English/Language Arts, including the English language development component 
of an adopted program:  
 
K-Grade 6 uses Houghton-Mifflin Reading Program. Grades 7-12 uses High 
Point Intervention.  
 
K-Grade 12 uses Unique Learning System, Online Curriculum 
 



Intervention:  Reading, Writing, & Language for Grades 9-12 uses Hampton-
Brown, 2009, Edge;  
 
Grade 7 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, First Edition; Grade 8 uses Holt, 
Rinehart and Winston 
  
Grade 7-8 uses High Point Intervention 
 
Grade 7-8 uses Unique-Online Curriculum  
 
FOR A FINDING OF SUFFICIENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SCIENCE, 

HISTORY-SOCIAL SCIENCE, MATH AND READING FOR 
FEATHER RIVER ACADEMY 

 
Feather River Academy 
 
Science:  Grades 7-12 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Holt Science Spectrum 
Physical Science.  Grades 9-12 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Holt Biology 
California.    
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 7 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2005, History 
Alive!, The Medieval World and Beyond.  Grade 8 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 
2005, History Alive!, The United States Through Industrialism.  Grades 10 uses 
McDougal Littell, Modern World History.  Grade 11 uses McDougal Littell, 
The Americans.  Grade 12 uses Prentice Hall, American Government.  Grade 12 uses 
Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Economics. 
 
Mathematics:  Grades 7-8 uses McDougal-Littell, Pre-Algebra.  Grades 9-12 
McDougal-Little, Algebra1. 
 
English/Language Arts:  Grades 9 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, for Literature 
and Language Arts, Third Course.  Grades 9-12 uses Holt, Rinehart and 
Winston, 2003, Literature and Language Arts, Fourth Course.  Grades 9-12 uses 
Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 2003, Literature and Language Arts, Fifth Course.  
 
Intervention:  Reading, Writing, & Language for Grades 9-12 uses Hampton-
Brown, 2009, Edge. 
 
Character Development and Character and Leadership, 2017: Role Models: 
Examples of Character and Leadership Grades 9-12 

 
FOR A FINDING OF SUFFICIENT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SCIENCE, 

HISTORY-SOCIAL SCIENCE, MATH AND READING FOR 
SUTTER COUNTY OPPORTUNITY 

 
 Opportunity 
 

Science:  Grade 7 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, California Life Science.   
Science:  Grade 8 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, California Physical Science. 



 
Mathematics curriculum for Grade 8 Course 1: Algebra 1, Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 
2008. 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 7 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2005, History 
Alive!, The Medieval World and Beyond. 
 
History/Social Studies:  Grade 8 uses Teachers’ Curriculum Institute, 2005, 
History Alive!, The United States Through Industrialism.  

 
English/Language Arts:  Grade 7 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 2003, for Literature 
and Language Arts, First Course. 
 
English/Language Arts:  Grade 8 uses Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 2003, for Literature 
and Language Arts, Second Course. 

 
 Intervention:  Reading, Writing, & Language for Grades 9-12 uses Hampton-
Brown, 2009, Edge. 
 

 
 
Therefore, it is resolved that for the 2019-20 school year, the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools Office has provided each student with sufficient textbooks 
and instructional materials aligned to the academic content standards and consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education 
on the 11th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 
 
McJunkin ____; Bains ____; Lachance ____; Turner ____; Richmond ____ 
  
 Ayes:   
 Noes:   
 Absent:   
 
 
      
Jim Richmond, President  Tom Reusser, Ex-officio 
Sutter County Board of Education  Sutter County Board of Education  



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  9.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Appointment of Supervisors of Attendance 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   September 11, 2019                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    x  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Brian Gault  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Brian Gault  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
EC 48245.   
In any district or districts with an average daily attendance of 1,000 or more school children, 
according to the annual school report of the last preceding school year, no district supervisor 
of attendance shall be appointed, unless he has been lawfully certificated for the work by the 
county board of education. 
 
Recommend that Virginia Burns be appointed Supervisor of Attendance for Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools as she was trained in all duties of Supervisor of Attendance on  
August 29 and 30, 2019.  
 
Recommend that Jennifer Cates and Brian Brown be certified as District Supervisors of  
Attendance for Yuba City Unified School District as they were trained in all the duties of  
Supervisors of Attendance at the California Department of Education on August 16, 2019. 
 
 



 

 
 
 

State of California 

EDUCATION CODE 

Section 48240 
 
 

48240. (a) The governing board of each school district and each county 
superintendent of schools shall appoint a supervisor of attendance and any assistant 
supervisors of attendance as may be necessary to supervise the attendance of pupils 
in the school district or county. The governing board of the school district or county 
superintendent of schools shall prescribe the duties of the supervisor of attendance 
and assistant supervisors of attendance to include, among other duties that may be 
required, those specific duties related to compulsory full-time education, truancy, 
work permits, compulsory continuation education, and opportunity schools, classes, 
and programs, now required of the attendance supervisors by this chapter and Article 
4 (commencing with Section 48450) of Chapter 3 and Article 2 (commencing  with 
Section 48640) of Chapter 4. 

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that in performing his or her duties, the 
supervisor of attendance promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to 
accurately track pupil attendance in order to achieve all of the following: 

(1) Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents, guardians, caregivers, 
community partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and 
truancy and other challenges associated with poor attendance. 

(2) Identify and respond to grade level or pupil subgroup patterns of chronic 
absenteeism or truancy. 

(3) Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual 
truancy, including suspension and expulsion. 

(4) Ensure that pupils with attendance problems are identified as early as possible 
to provide applicable support services and interventions. 

(5) Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic 
absenteeism rates and truancy rates. 

(c) When a pupil with a temporary disability, as defined in Section 48206.3, is 
receiving individual instruction in the home or a hospital or other residential health 
facility, the supervisor of attendance shall ensure that absences from the pupil’s regular 
school program are excused until the pupil is able to return to the regular school 
program. 

(d) The supervisor of attendance may provide support services and interventions, 
which may include, but are not limited to, any or all of the following: 

(1) A conference between school personnel, the pupil’s parent or guardian, and 
the pupil. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

AUTHENTICATED 
ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL 



(2) Promoting cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase pupil 
connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning, or 
athletics. 

(3) Recognizing pupils who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant 
improvement in attendance. 

(4) Referral to a school nurse, school counselor, school psychologist, school social 
worker, and other pupil support personnel for case management and counseling. 

(5) Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public 
health care agencies, or government agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral 
health care providers to receive necessary services. 

(6) Collaborating with school study teams, guidance teams, school attendance 
review teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior 
problem in partnership with the pupil and his or her parents, guardians, or caregivers. 

(7) In schools with significantly higher rates of chronic absenteeism, identify 
barriers to attendance that may require schoolwide strategies rather than case 
management. 

(8) Referral for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational assessment, 
including for purposes of creating an individualized education program for an 
individual with exceptional needs, as that term is defined in Section 56026, or plan 
adopted for a qualified handicapped person, as that term is defined in regulations 
promulgated by the United States Department of Education pursuant to Section 504 
of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794). 

(9) Referral to a school attendance review board established by the county or by 
a school district pursuant to Section 48321 or to the probation department pursuant 
to Section 48263. 

(10) Referral to a truancy mediation program operated by the county’s district 
attorney or probation officer pursuant to Section 48260.6. 

(Amended by Stats. 2018, Ch. 167, Sec. 7.  (AB 2109)  Effective January 1, 2019.) 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   10.1 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Business Services Report 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2019                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Aaron Heinz  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Aaron Heinz  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Aaron Heinz  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 The monthly financial report for August will be reviewed. 
 
 
 
 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2019-20 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/19 7/15/19 8/15/19 8/15/19 of Budget

(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1) Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 9,958,960$      9,958,960$      382,149$       9,958,960$    -                   A 3.8%

    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 3,800,629$      3,803,040$      19,768$         3,860,453$    57,413             B 0.5%

    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 8,548,686$      8,548,686$      765,462$       9,710,207$    1,161,521        C 9.0%

    4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 14,408,563$    14,408,563$    229,307$       14,408,563$  -                   D 1.6%

.

       TOTAL REVENUES 36,716,838$    36,719,249$    1,396,686$    37,938,183$  1,218,934$      3.7%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 8,381,028$      8,381,028$      321,750$       8,594,423$    213,395           E 3.8%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 11,671,820$    11,671,820$    568,577$       11,671,820$  -                   F 4.9%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 7,531,320$      7,531,320$      261,040$       7,615,035$    83,715             G 3.5%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 841,597$         844,824$         48,983$         929,303$       84,479             H 5.8%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 4,555,559$      4,554,185$      407,939$       5,539,902$    985,717           I 9.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 481,710$         481,710$         -$              481,710$       -                   J 0.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 287,624$         287,624$         353$             287,624$       -                   K 0.1%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (77,470)$          (77,470)$         (2,691)$         (77,470)$       -                   L 3.5%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 -$                 -$                -                   M 0.0%

 

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,673,188$    33,675,041$    1,605,951$    35,042,347$  1,367,306        4.8%

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 

(A5-B9)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 54,234$           54,234$          -$              54,234$         -                   N 0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 767,665$         767,665$         -$              767,665$       -                   O 0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                -                   P 0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (713,431)$        (713,431)$       -$              (713,431)$     -$                 0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 2,330,219$       2,330,777$       (209,265)$      2,182,405$     (148,372)$         

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 9,586,727$      9,586,727$      9,586,727$    9,586,727$    -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                -$              -$              

       Ending Balance 11,916,946$     11,917,504$     9,377,462$     11,769,132$   (148,372)$         

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance

    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,000$           10,000$          10,000$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 3,124,346$      3,124,346$      3,124,346$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 7,060,557$      7,060,557$      6,844,285$    -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 1,722,043$      1,722,043$      1,790,501$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                -$              -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

AUGUST REPORT

-7.2%(148,372)$        2,895,836$    (209,265)$     3,044,208$      3,043,650$      

07/16/2019-08/15/2019



Explanation of Differences

Net Change in Current Year Budget August Board Report

07/16/2019 - 08/15/19

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                   

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

One Stop 3,531$                Refining budget for Storm Grant

Educational Services (ES) 53,362$              
Adjusting budget for prior year and deferred revenue from the 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement grant 

Various departments 520$                   Miscellaneous Adjustments

57,413$              

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 1,161,521$        
Establishing budget for K-12 Strong Workforce Program and Career 

Technical Education Incentive Grant

1,161,521$        

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)

-$                   

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)

County Office 165,186$           Establishing budget for Deputy Superintendent position

Special Education (293,241)$          Decrease budget for staffing changes to contract employment

Educational Services (ES) 27,152$              
Adjusting budget for prior year and deferred revenue from the 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement grant 

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 314,298$           Establish budget for K-12 Strong Workforce Program

213,395$           

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)

-$                   

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)

County Office 36,696$              Establishing budget for Deputy Superintendent position

Special Education (69,771)$            Decrease budget for staffing changes to contract employment

Educational Services (ES) 5,732$                
Adjusting budget for prior year and deferred revenue from the 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement grant 

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 111,058$           Establishing budget for K-12 Strong Workforce Program

83,715$              

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)

County Office 4,552$                
Establishing budget for Deputy Superintendent expenditures and increase 

budget for technology purchases

Special Education 4,472$                
Establishing budget for Medi-Cal mini grants and increase budget for 

ergonomic purchases

One Stop 2,313$                Increase budget for Storm grant and to match actuals

Educational Services (ES) 3,567$                Increase budget to match actuals

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 68,325$              Establishing budget for K-12 Strong Workforce Program

Feather River Academy (FRA) 1,250$                Increase budget for technology purchase

84,479$              



Explanation of Differences

Net Change in Current Year Budget August Board Report

07/16/2019 - 08/15/19

Amount Explanation of Differences

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)

County Office (732,210)$          

Net decrease to budget for differentiated assistance from Business 

Administration to Educational Services, establishing budget for Deputy 

Superintendent expenditures and contribution to new storage facility

Special Education 375,512$           Increase budget for staffing changes to contract employment

Educational Services (ES) 790,337$           

Increase to budget for differentiated assistance to Educational Services from 

Business Administration and establish budget for Multi-Tiered System of 

Supports expenditures

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 552,489$           
Establishing budget for K-12 Strong Workforce Program and Career 

Technical Education Incentive Grant

Feather River Academy (FRA) (1,250)$              Decrease budget for technology purchase

Various departments 839$                   Miscellaneous Adjustments

985,717$           

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

-$                   

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)

-$                   

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                   

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

-$                   

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

-$                   

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                   

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                   

Net Change in Current Year Budget (148,372)$          



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   10.2 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   September 11, 2019             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of July 31, 2019 from the County Treasurer will be presented.  
  
 
 
 
 





















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   10.3  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Quarterly Report of Surplus Property 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2019                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
    X  Reports/Presentation 
 
    Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Mona Brokenbrough 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
In accordance with Board Policy 3270, the County Superintendent of Schools prepares  
and presents a quarterly report to the Board of items under $25,000 in value that are  
being declared surplus. 
  
 
 
 
 











          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   10.4  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2019                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor    Value     Purpose 
Shannon Cueva   $250.00  Sumer Camp Tuition Scholarship 
Shannon Cueva   $5.00   School-Shady Creek 
The Lincoln Electric Company $2,903.00  Adv. Mfg trailer Lab-ROP 
 

Total  $3,158 
 

19-20 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $500.00 $255.00  $755.00 

 Total Donations-Value   $2,903.00  $2,903.00 
Total Donations  $500.00 $3,158.00  $3,658.00 
 

 









          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  11.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution 19-20-II Declaration of Surplus and 

Disposition of Real Property  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   September 11, 2019             
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
   X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Resolution to declare certain real property as surplus and to proceed with the disposition and 
sale of properties located at: 
 

• 950 Tharp Road, 300 
Yuba City, CA 95993 

 
• 1699 Sierra Avenue 

Yuba City, CA 95993 
 

• 996 Klamath Lane 
Yuba City, CA 95993 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-20-II 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
DECLARING SPECIFIED REAL PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
SUPERINTENDENT TO PROCEED WITH DISPOSITION OF THE SURPLUS PROPERTY 

________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sutter County Board of Education (“Board”) is the owner of a fee simple 
interest in the following real property: 950 Tharp Road, #300, Yuba City, CA 95993 [APN 58-
050-072], 1699 Sierra Avenue, Yuba City, CA 95993 [APN 58-050-034], and 996 Klamath 
Lane, Yuba City, CA 95993 [APN 58-050-083] (collectively referred to as the “Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property currently houses various administrative departments and other 
functions (“Operations”) of the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools (“Superintendent”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, upon the direction of the Superintendent, staff evaluated the facilities needs 

of the Board and the Superintendent and determined that cost-savings would be achieved by 
consolidating these Operations on other real property owned by the Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 1042, et seq. of the Education Code, a county office of 
education may lease and convey its real property in the name by which the board of education 
is designated; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 11, 2019, the Board authorized the Superintendent and staff 

to commence the surplus property disposition process for the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, before proceeding with offering the Property for sale, lease with option to 
purchase, or lease, the Board is required by Government Code section 65402 to notify the local 
planning commission of the intended disposition and by Government Code Section 54222 et 
seq. to offer the Property to specified public entities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, if no public entity expresses an interest in entering into a purchase, lease 
with option to purchase, or lease of any of the Property within the time required by law, the 
Board may proceed with the disposition of process of the Property in the manner designated by 
the Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board determines that it is in the best interests of the Board and the 
Superintendent to sell the Property. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

Section 2.  The Board hereby declares the Property surplus to the needs of the Board 
and the Superintendent. 

 
Section 3.  The Board hereby declares its intention to offer the Property for sale, subject 

to the terms and conditions set forth below. 



 Section 4.  The Board will first notify the Sutter County Planning Commission as 
required by Government Code section 65402 and offer the Property for sale to specified public 
entities as required by Government Code section 54222 et seq. before accepting proposals or 
bids for the sale or lease with option to purchase the Property.  

 
 Section 5.  The Board hereby appoints the Superintendent as the Board’s real property 
negotiator and directs the Superintendent to make the notifications and offers to sell the 
Property set forth above.  If no public agency responds to the offer to sell the Property as 
described above or the parties are unable to agree to mutually satisfactory terms for the 
purchase and sale, the Board will authorize the Property to be sold through a competitive 
bidding process pursuant to terms to be outlined in a future resolution approved by the Board. 
 
 Section 6.  The Superintendent and staff are further authorized to take all acts necessary 
to implement this Resolution. 
 
 Section 7.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the 
Board and/or Superintendent with respect to the matters set forth above are hereby approved, 
confirmed and ratified. 
 
 Section 8.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sutter County Board of Education, this 11th day of 
September, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
 
McJunkin _____; Bains _____; Lachance _____; Turner _____; Richmond _____ 

 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 
      
Jim Richmond, President  Tom Reusser, Ex-officio 
Sutter County Board of Education  Sutter County Board of Education  

 

 


	1. Agenda 9-11-19 (2)
	2.0 AI Minutes
	2.1 Minutes 6-26-19
	2.2 Minutes August 14 2019
	3.0 AI Anti Vaping Campaign
	4.0 AI Public hearing Sufficency Instructional
	4.1 Public Hearing Instructional Material
	5.0 AI Suffiency of Instructional Materials
	5.1 Resolution - Sufficiency Sept 2019
	6.0 AI Supervisors of Attendance
	6.1 EDC 48240 for Supervisors of Attendance
	7.0 AI July Board Report
	7.1 Aug Board Report 07-16-19 to 08-15-19
	7.2 AI Investment Report
	7.3 Investment_Report
	7.4 AI Quarterly Report of Surplus
	7.5 Surplus Report
	7.5(a) Surplus Report
	7.6 AI Donations
	7.6 Shady Creek Donation
	7.7 Lincoln Electric Donation
	8.0 AI Real Property Surplus Resolution 9-11-2019
	8.1 Resolution Declaring Property Surplus
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:


